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CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND

ADDENDUM No. 2

TO
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

FOR

REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF RESIDUALS FROM THE
SOUTH SEDIMENTATION BASIN

PHILIP J. HOLTON PURIFICATION PLANT,
61 NORTH ROAD, SCITUATE, RI

Bidders are hereby notified of the following additions, deletions, and modifications to the Contract
Documents for Removal and Disposal of Residuals from the South Sedimentation Basin at the
Philip J. Holton Purification Plant.

Bidders shall acknowledge receipt of this Addendum in the space provided on the bid forms.

A. SPECIFICATIONS

SECTION 00200 INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

Page 00200-3, Add the following paragraph 3.01.M:

M. Evaluation Criteria
Providence Water may award to an individual firm or not award as is deemed in its best
interests. The evaluation and award method utilized by Providence Water will place a
weighted emphasis on Providence Water’s evaluation of each proposal as outlined below.

1. Prior significant experience and performance with Providence Water of each
bidding firm, such as,
a. Work History with Providence Water
b. Ability to meet schedules and budgets
c. Demonstrated professionalism with Providence Water
d. Technical Expertise working on Providence Water projects.

2.  Experience and Qualifications of the firm and its personnel.
3.  Understanding of the project and work, proposed scope of work and the

soundness of the project management plan presented for the necessary services
and delivering of the project, as presented in the bid.

4.  Total Amount of Bid Based on Estimated Quantities

Providence Water retains the exclusive right to determine the qualifications and
capabilities of any firm in providing needed services to Providence Water and to award in
consideration of the best interest of Providence Water and the City of Providence.
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SECTION 00301 BID FORM

Delete page 5 and replace it with the attached revised page 5.

SECTION 00800 SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS
Page 5, Add the following after SC-4.05.A:
SC-4.05.C
Insert Paragraph 4.05.C.5 as follows:
5. a change in Federal, State, or local law or ordinance; orders or judgments of any Federal,

State, or local court, administrative agency or governmental body; change in permit
conditions or requirements.

SECTION 01010 SUMMARY OF WORK
Page 01010-2, Delete Paragraph 1.02.A.2 and replace it with “The volume of liquid pumped will
be measured by a flow meter provided by the Contractor and approved by the Owner and
Engineer.”

Page 01010-3, Paragraph 1.02.A.8, change the second sentence to read “Weigh scales shall be
Certified by the Rhode Island Weights and Measures Office.”

Page 01010-4, Paragraph 1.03.A.10, delete the sentence “A thin layer of residuals remaining on
the surface of the basin bottom and troughs is acceptable.”

Add the following Paragraph to 1.02.A:

10. Ahead of discharge to Lagoon 2 filtrate from dewatering operations is to be tested for
compliance with Providence Water’s RIPDES permit.  The filtrate is to be tested for Total
Suspended Solids (TSS), Turbidity, pH, Total Residual Chlorine, Total Iron and Total
Lead.  If the filtrate causes an increase in these parameters that will exceed the RIPDES
permit limits discharge to Lagoon 2 will be stopped until corrective action can be taken.

SECTION 01025 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
Page 01025-2, paragraph 1.02, add the following after Item 11:
“12. Dewatering Area Site Preparation”

Page 01025-2, Item 1 Mobilization/Demobilization, paragraph C, change the second sentence to
read “The lump sum amount bid under this Bid Item shall not exceed 10% of the total bid
amount, excluding Bid Item 1, and no payment will be made in excess of this amount.”

Add the following after Item 11 on page 01025-6:
ITEM 12 DEWATERING AREA SITE PREPARATION
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A.  General. The price bid under this Bid Item for dewatering area site preparation shall be full
compensation for all labor, equipment, tools, and materials necessary to complete the Work
as required, which shall include transporting, excavation, backfill, compaction, grading,
equipment installation and setup, and all other incidental Work relative thereto.

B. Method of Measurement. Measurement for dewatering area site preparation shall be lump
sum as approved by the Engineer.

C. Method of Payment. Payment for dewatering area site preparation shall be the lump sum price
bid under this Bid Item, listed in Document 00301, Bid.

SECTION 02100 SITE PREPARATION
Paragraph 1.05.E, change “Lagoon 1B” to “Lagoon 2”.

B. QUESTIONS

1. Question: For decanting thru the head of the plant the specifications call for 5% of the
raw water inflow rate. Can you provide the average inflow water rate for the plant in
GPD?

Response:  The average daily flow is 60 MGD.  The maximum daily flow can be up to
100 MGD. The minimum flow is 40 MGD.

2. Question:  When was the last time the South Sedimentation Basin was cleaned?

Response:  The South Sedimentation Basin was last cleaned in 2008 – 2009.

3. Question:  Can you provide the name of the transporter and disposal location for the
sludge removed from the drying beds in the past?

Response:  The transporter was Synagro of Naugatuck, CT and the disposal location was
Ernest Joly & Sons, Inc., Danielson, CT.

4. Question:  Please confirm fully completion date, as specified March 1 does not allow for
any paving and/or spring restoration.

Response:  The Work for draining, cleaning, and returning the South Sedimentation
Basin to service is to be completed within 105 calendar days after the date when the
Contract Times commence to run. Final drying of the residuals and removal from the site
will be completed within 280 calendar days after the date when the Contract Times
commence to run.  If based on the date of the notice to proceed the timing of the
completion time does not allow for restoration of the dewatering site due to weather
conditions a time adjustment will be negotiated to allow for restoration under the
appropriate weather conditions.

5. Question: Can equipment be setup anywhere on the west side of RT116 or does it need
to be located in/around the drying beds?
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Response: The intent is to utilize the existing drying beds and existing cleared areas.  As
stated in Section 00301, Article 7, bidders are to include a description of their proposed
means and methods to achieve the project goals with the bid.  Use of areas other than the
existing drying beds will be subject to the approval of Providence Water.

6. Question: The treatability of the material is essential to the bidding process.  Will
potential bidders be allowed to sample the material in the South Sedimentation Basin and
drying beds?

Response: Providence Water will grab samples of the residuals in the South
Sedimentation basin and the design engineer will perform a treatability study.  The
treatability study results will be provided in an addendum prior to the bid date.  The
treatability tests will include the following:

 Stacking/gravity filtration tests
 Passive dewatering tests

o Geotextile tube efficacy w/ filter tests, hanging bag tests and/or pillow
tests

o Mechanical dewatering: Plate-and-frame and Belt-filter Presses,
Centrifuges

 Solidification/stabilization treatability tests
o Dewatering
o Strength Improvement
o Contaminant leachability

 Chemical Conditioning Evaluation to determine the type and dosage of chemical
conditioning required

 Geotextile Tube Pillow Test

Conditioned residual slurry is tested using a pillow geotextile tube or hanging bag to
measure the efficacy of geotextile tube dewatering, confirm the selection and dosage of
the chemical conditioning program, and generate enough filter cake and filtrate for
chemical and geotechnical analyses. Aliquots of the filter cake are collected, preserved
and analyzed for a select list of COCs and geotechnical parameters to determine efficacy,
evaluate disposal options as well as the potential for the dewatered material to meet or
exceed beneficial use requirements, as necessary. Filtrate is typically analyzed for a select
list of chemicals of concern and turbidity.

The filter cake will be analyzed for volatile organic compounds, semi-volatile organic
compounds and metals after Toxicity Characteristic Procedure Leaching (TCLP). Filtrate
volume and quality will be evaluated over a 48-h period. The filtrate will be analyzed for
total suspended solids, turbidity and analytes (pH, total residual chlorine, total iron, total
lead) based on the RIPDES discharge permit requirements.

7. Question: Can the South Sedimentation Basin be dredged while the basin is still in
service or is all dredging confined to a 105 day window?
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Response: All dredging must occur with the South Sedimentation basin out of service.
The intent is to minimize the time that the South Sedimentation Basin is out of service
and limit it to 105 days.

8. Question: Can you provide clarification on whether the total gallons decanted will be
paid based on flow meter data or the drone survey shown in Section 01010 1.02
Paragraph 2.

Response: The total gallons decanted will be paid for based on flow meter data.

9. Question: If the contractors means and methods do not require water to be decanted, will
the decanting of water be required? If not required, does the contractor need to bid line
item 3?

Response: If the Contractor’s means and methods do not require water to be decanted
from the South Sedimentation Basin the unit price of Item 3 can be $0.00. However, if
the upper basin contents are disturbed before decanting, and the turbidity exceeds 5 NTU,
the liquid cannot be decanted to the head of the plant and would require dewatering.

10. Question: Can the bathymetric survey data be made available?

Response: Yes, the electronic files of the survey data can be provided upon request.

11. Question: Is there a known disposal site that has accepted the dried water residuals?

Response: See the response to question 3.

12. Question: If the contractors trucking and disposal site are willing to take material at less
than 25% solids and the material is truckable.  Is it acceptable to take out material that is
less than 25%?

Response: Yes, but the material must be sampled to determine the percent solids and the
item will be paid for on a dry ton basis. The Contractor shall determine the means and
methods of sludge removal from the site.  A target of 20 to 25% solids is recommended.
The percent solids of the material removed from the site is at the discretion of the
Contractor.  All trucking shall meet all local, state, and federal transportation codes and
regulations.

13. Question: Is there a budget number available for the project?

Response: There is no cost estimate for this project.

14. Question: Since the treatability studies and chemical testing of the material are essential
to the bidding process, can the bid date be extended to allow for time for testing the
material?

Response: The bid date has been changed to June 20, 2023, by Addendum No. 1.

15. Question: Can the property boundaries of Providence Water be provided on a map?
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Response: A plan showing the boundaries of the land owned by Providence Water is
attached to this addendum.

16. Question: Since Line Item 1: Mobilization/Demobilization is limited to only 5%, can an
additional line item for dewatering site prep be added to the bid?

Response: A bid item for dewatering site preparation has been added. The revised Bid
Form page is included in this addendum.

17. Question: Can the maximum decanting rate be provided in GPM?

Response: As stated in the specifications the decanting rate is 5% of the plant raw water
flow. The actual flow rate will have to be coordinated with the plant operations staff on a
daily basis.  The typical average day and maximum day flow rates of the plant are 60
MGD or 41,667 gpm and up to 100 MGD or 69,444 gpm respectively.  The decant flow
rates would be 5% of the actual plant flow rate at any given time.

18. Question: Will 24 hour working days be allowed if necessary?

Response: If necessary 24 hour working day swill be allowed if Providence Water and
the Engineer can properly monitor the work.

19. Question: Could you provide me some information as to what process is, primary
coagulant being used, any flocculant or polymers being used?

Response: Currently liquid ferric sulfate and lime are added to the water ahead of the
sedimentation basins.

20. Question: Treatability Work on the in-situ Sludge of the South Sedimentation Basin
a. Can 5 to 10 gallons of a representative sample of the in-situ sludge to be removed

from the basin to perform treatability work?  Performing treatability prior to the
bid submission will allow us to better estimate the project’s cost. Treatability will
allow us to determine the following.

i. Polymer usage and cost
ii. Lineal feet of geotextile tubes or dewatering equipment (such as belt

presses) performance and number of units required to achieve > 2,000
gpm production.

iii. Number of wet tons that will need to be loaded, hauled, and disposed of.
iv. Amount of amendment, such as Portland cement required to achieve 25%

solids for safe transport and/or landfill acceptance.
b. If samples cannot be provided or collected, will the Contractor have the ability to

adjust pricing for items affected by results of actual treatability testing that is
performed after award?

Response: See the response to question 6 relative to sampling the residuals material and
a Treatability Study.
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Any amendment to be used (either for sedimentation basin dewatering or drying bed
sludge conditioning) is at the discretion of the contractor. The intent is that Providence
Water will pay only for the native dry tons of solids removed from the basin (or drying
beds). The weight of any amendment used will be measured on arrival at the site at the
weigh station, and that weight deducted from the total weight of dry solids that leave the
site through the weigh station. A ratio of amendment to total dry solids leaving will be
established as part of the monthly payment schedule, if a contractor chooses to add an
amendment.

21. Question: Level of clean
a. Please consider adding a tolerance of residual material allowed to be left behind

after dredging. The definition of “clean” or “rinsed” can have a wide range of
interpretations and can result in significant project cost.  We recommend dredging
the entire surface of the basin with a vacuum attachment, with verification of
removal by means of a sludge judge and demonstration of removal of material
down to 6 inches of light material remaining, while leaving ~ 3 to 4’ of top water
remaining to float the dredge. If further removal is required, we suggest that a day
rate for equipment and personnel be established to completely drain and rinse the
basin, at the owner’s direction.

Response: A thin layer of residuals remaining on the bottom surface of the South
Sedimentation Basin is not acceptable. The depth of water to float a dredge is at the
discretion of the contractor. However, the basin must be drained of all residuals to bare
concrete as part of the draining and dewatering process.

22. Question: Drying Beds/Dewatering Area
a. Section 02140 – Dewatering. This section seems to be for groundwater

dewatering.  Is the intent of this section to be used in the drying bed area?
b. Based on Pare Corporation Memorandum on page 330 of the specifications shows

the drying bed material rages from 68.4% to 22.6% solids.  The projects requires
all material reach 25% solids or greater before removal from the site.  Is the intent
to add amendment to the drying bed material to help reach the 25% solids
requirement?

c. If the intent is to use amendment for the drying bed material, please consider
adding an allowance for amendment since it is impossible to identify how much
of the drying bed material will need amendment or further dewatering.

d. Has any stability testing been performed on the drying bed area that is to be used
for dewatering? Can equipment easily work on the drying beds?

e. Can a liner be installed in the drying bed area for dewatering to prevent erosion
during dewatering operations?

f. The drawings show filtrate water being discharged into Lagoon 2, however,
within the specification 02100-1-1.05-E it requires filtrate water to be discharged
into Lagoon 1B.  Please provide directions as to where filtrate water shall be
discharged.
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g. How is the dewatering drainage pipelines to be installed from the drying beds to
Lagoon 2 or Lagoon 1B?

h. Where did the current material in the drying beds originate? Can the Contractor
anticipate the material in the south sedimentation basin to perform the same as the
current material in the drying beds.

Response:
a. Section 02140 applies to any dewatering required for excavations necessary for
completion of the work including trenching for pipe installation and preparation
of the site for dewatering equipment.

b. Means of dredging and dewatering the solids that are removed will be left to
the contractor’s discretion, subject to the approval of Providence Water.  See
responses to questions 12 and 20.  Weight of solids will be on Dry Ton basis.

c. Means of dredging and dewatering the solids that are removed will be left to the
contractor’s discretion, subject to the approval of Providence Water. See
responses to questions 12 and 20.  Weight of solids will be on Dry Ton basis.

d. No stability testing has been performed.  Equipment has been used in the
drying beds in the past to remove residuals.

e. Means of dredging and dewatering the solids that are removed will be left to the
contractor’s discretion.  Contractors will propose the equipment and methods for
dredging and dewatering with their bid for review by the Owner and Engineer,
prior to contract award.  A liner would not be prohibited.

f. Filtrate water is to be discharged to Lagoon 2.

g. Dewatering drainage pipes should be installed in trenches.  Existing berms shall
be rebuilt as part of the pipe installation and erosion control measures taken in
accordance with Section 01568.

h. The existing material in the drying beds was removed from the North
Sedimentation Basin.  The residuals in the South Sedimentation basin are
expected to be similar.

23. Question: Please consider extending the bid date to allow the Contractors to review the
answers to questions and provided adjustments to their pricing and proposal.

Response:  The bid date has been extended to June 20, 2023 by Addendum No. 1.

24. Question: Can you please provide more detail on what is required within Bid Item 8 –
Experimental Excavation?  We have not been able to locate a drawing detail showing the
requirements and where this excavation is required.
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Response: Bid Item 8 is intended to be for the cost of any experimental excavation or
test pits requested by the Owner or Engineer or otherwise deemed necessary for
completion of the work.

25. Question: The project calls for prevailing wage rates, but they were not provided.  Can
you please provide the wage rates for this project?

Response: Prevailing Wage refers to the requirements of the Rhode Island General Law
37-13 and the general prevailing rate of pay for regular, holiday and overtime wages to be
paid to each craftsmen, mechanic, teamster, laborer or other type of worker performing
work on public works projects when state or municipal funds are used in excess of
$1,000. Contractors must refer to the applicable Davis Bacon Wage Determination rate
schedule found online at the U.S. System for Award Management (SAM) to determine
the prevailing wage rates for a public works construction project. The prevailing wage
rates to be applied are those that are effective as of the date of the awarding of the
contract to the general contractor. Contractors must also adjust employees' hourly wage
rates (if applicable) every July 1st in accordance with any updated Davis Bacon Wage
Determination rates.

The current wage rates are attached to this addendum.

26. Question: When is the anticipated Notice to Proceed Date?

Response: The Notice of Award  is anticipated to be issued within 8  weeks after the
receipt of bids.  A Notice to Proceed will be issued after contract execution.

27. Question: The total volume of residuals (dewatered from the South Basin and stored in
the drying beds), will require as many as seven loads per day to be removed from the
facility for the full 260-day term of the contract. Recently, I have attempted to find
disposal options for a similar project in the region and only found one facility able to
receive two loads per day. Have you contacted any possible disposal outlets to inquire
about their ability to receive this material?

Response: No disposal facilities have been contacted. Means of dredging, dewatering,
removal and disposal of the solids that are removed is left to the contractor’s discretion.

28. Question: Has this project been performed in the past? If so, when, by whom, and what
was the disposal location?

Response: Most recently residuals from the North Sedimentation Basin were removed
from the basin and dewatered in the drying beds. See the response to question 3 for the
transporter and disposal location.

29. Question: Is it possible to schedule a day/time that I can stop by the site and grab a quick
sample?

Response: See the response to question 6.
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30. Question: Can you please consider changing the following requirements for
mobilization/demobilization? “The lump sum amount bid under this Bid Item shall not
exceed 5% if the total bid amount, excluding Bid Item 1, and no payment will be made in
excess of this amount.”  We recommend at least 10% for this type of work, especially
since the majority of the other line items have variable units.

Response: The amount for mobilization/demobilization has been changed to 10% of the
total bid in this addendum.

31. Question: For the Owner office, it calls for a 4 wide, 3,050 square foot office, minimum
of 48’ wide, 70 inch TV screen, 880 download speed internet and 980 upload, 8 cubicles
along with many other items.  Is this truly what you would like provided for the Owner’s
Office?

Response: The requirements in the specifications are what Providence Water requires for
the Owner’s trailer. The trailer is being procured under this project for additional projects
in the future. In Section 01500 it is stated that the office will become property of the
Owner when the work is completed.

32. Question: Based on Google Earth images, it looks like material from the drying beds
have been removed and disposed of before. Can you please provide the Contractor
information and disposal site that was used on the previous projects?

Response: See the response to question 3.

33. Question: When previously cleaned out, where did the material go for disposal?

Response: See the response to question 3.

34. Question: Please provide the most recent full chemical characterization results for the
sediments.

Response: See the response to question 6.

35. Question: What are the average total Arsenic concentrations present in the sediments?

Response: See the response to question 6.

36. Question: Are there any additives in the sediment from the WTP process and if so, what
are they and at what concentration can we expect them to be present?

Response: Currently liquid ferric sulfate and lime are added to the water ahead of the
sedimentation basins.  See the response to question 6 regarding residuals sampling.
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37. Question: Who is responsible for determining the percent solids of the material being
hauled out by truck?  If it is the contractor, is there a specific methodology that the
contractor should follow and/or requirements for how the percent solids are measured?

Response: The Contractor is responsible for sampling and testing the material to
determine the percent solids for calculation of the dry tons weight.  Samples of the
material will be split with the Owner to confirm results.   The Contractors sampling and
testing methods will be subject to review and approval by the Owner and Engineer.

38. Question: Is this a prevailing wage job? If so, can the wage rates specific for this job be
provided?

Response: See the response to question 25.

39. Question: Can the means and methods of determining the volume in the lagoon be made
available? Considering that the job is being bid on the dry ton, understanding how the
total volume and percent solids of the in situ material were determined is extremely
important.

Response: The estimated volumes of residuals in the sedimentation basin and lagoons
were calculated based on the information in the Sedimentation Survey and Additional
Sediment Sampling that are appended to the Contract Documents. Volumes of liquids
and solids in the basin were calculated based on existing as-built drawings of the basin
and existing water levels. Solids locations and volumes were calculated based on the
Sedimentation Survey with probes and sampling tubes to determine thickness and percent
solids for each sample taken. Decant volumes were calculated based on the survey
sampling and amount of low solids in the liquid found at each sample point.

40. Question: Please verify that Geotextile tubes are an acceptable method for dewatering.

Response: Yes Geotextile tubes is one of the dewatering methods that would be
acceptable.  The bidder is required to include a description of the proposed means and
methods with their bid.

41. Question: Do you have any analytical testing of residuals, Metals, Volatiles etc?

Response: See response to question 6.

42. Question: Have the materials specified for disposal and land application been tested at
any time over the previous 10 years for PFAS / PFOA or other harmful chemical
Components? If so, would the City be willing to share the results of these test results?

Response: The materials have not been tested for PFAS/PFOA over the past 10 years.
PFAS testing will be included in the Treatability Study.
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43. Question: Does the City have any plans to test the materials specified in the agreement
for PFAS /PFOA or other harmful chemicals during the duration of the contractual
agreement term?

Response: See the response to question 6.  PFAS testing will be included in the
Treatability Study.

44. Question: Will the City agree to allow the contractor the opportunity to adjust the price
of the bid, should the City not issue notice to proceed (NTP) within 60 days of the
notification of the award. The adjustments, if any would be limited to market conditions
represented in CPI, DOT Fuel Adjustment Surcharge and increased costs of materials and
equipment?

Response: The intends to issue a Notice of Award within 60 days after the bids are
received.  The NTP will be issued after execution of the Agreement.  Price adjustments
will be considered if the Notice of Award is not issued within 60 days.

45. Question: Will the City agree to amend Section 4.05 C (P88 of Bid Specs) to include
subsection 5 ” a change in Federal, State, or local law or ordinance; orders or judgments
of any Federal, State or local court, administrative agency or governmental body; change
in permit conditions or requirements.”

Response: Yes, subsection 5 is added as described previously in this addendum.

46. Question: Will the City agree to waive liquidated damage assessments for any delays in
the contractor’s progress caused by or as a result of a Force Majeure (Act of God) Event
as defined by section 4.05 C 1-5 of the contract document? “Contractor shall be given an
extension to the work to be performed equal to that in length of the delay caused by the
Force Majeure Event, before any liquidated damages will be assessed.”(Page 58 of the
bid specs, Section 4.03).

Response: The City will consider a time extension request for delays that are the result of
Force Majeure.

47. Question: Section 5.02 C (Page 90 of the Bid Specs) Will the city please elaborate in
greater detail its definition of “shall restore to original condition all property not
designated for alteration by the Contract Documents” – Does this section require a
comprehensive reclamation program of replanting of grasses, seeding and loaming, tree
and shrub replacement, soil grading, and excavation etc.  or is the scope more limited to
clean up and reseeding?

Response: Restoration will require backfill of excavations, grading of soil, cleanup and
reseeding and repaving of areas of existing pavement that are disturbed.

48. Question: Can the City extend the Bid for an additional 1-2 weeks?

Response: The bid date has been changed to June 20, 2023 by Addendum No. 1.
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49. Question: Will the City amend the terms of payment to NET 30 Payment terms
(Currently Specified as NET 60 in the Contract) upon receipt of a properly formatted
invoice, (Sample Language Below)
Payment Terms
Contractor shall submit to City an invoice setting forth the amounts due and any
additional information with respect to the computation of said amount. City shall pay to
Contractor the full amount due under said invoice within thirty (30) days of the date of
said invoice.  Any invoice amount not paid in full within thirty (30) days after the date of
said invoice shall bear interest at the rate of one and one half percent (1.5%) per month
on the unpaid balance thereof computed from the date of the invoice. If there are disputes
regarding the contract, City agrees to promptly pay any undisputed amounts.

Response: This contract language will not be amended.

50. Question: Can we assume that the Whipp shop drawings included in the proposal
documents are for the new gates?  Can the owner provide drawings of the existing gates?

Response: The shop drawings provided are for the new gates.  Shop drawings of the
existing gates are not available.  Original design drawings showing the existing gates are
attached to this addendum.  The existing gates are not to be removed.

51. Question: The sequence provided in 01010 1.03 A indicates that the new slide gates are
to be installed prior to removal of solids from the south sediment basin.  Are we to
assume that the replacement of the gates is to be completed prior to draw down of the
pond?  If so, is it assumed that the gate replacements would need to be completed by
divers?  Would it be acceptable that the gates be replaced after the pond has been
drained?

Response: The intent is for the gates to be replaced while the South Sedimentation Basin
is out of service and drained for residuals removal.  Divers are not necessary.

52. Question: If the gates are to be replaced in the ‘wet’ are there existing bulkhead slots that
can be utilized to bypass flows so that gates can be replaced with divers?  If bulkhead and
slots are not available can you provide details on how gates are to be replaced?

Response: The intent is for the gates to be installed in the dry.  The existing gates will
have to remain in place to stop flow to the basin.  Original design drawings showing the
existing gates and the location where new gates are to be installed are attached to this
addendum.

53. Question: Can we assume that the existing gates are the same dimensions as the new
gates and no modifications to the frame opening will need to be made?  Can we assume
that the new gate frames and stem guides are attached to concrete?  Are there any as-built
drawings for either the existing gates and/or the dam structure?
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Response: Original design drawings showing the existing gates and the location where
new gates are to be installed are attached to this addendum.

54. Question: Can we assume that the owner will take possession and dispose of the existing
gates, frames, guides, etc?

Response: The existing gates are not to be removed.

55. Question: Is the contractor responsible for installation of the gate actuators?  Is the
contractor responsible for power and/or data connections to the new actuators?  If yes,
can we assume that the power/data from the existing actuators can be swapped to the new
actuators?

Response: Only one of the new gates requires an electric actuator.  Providence Water
will provide the actuator for installation by the Contractor.  Providence Water will install
power to the actuator under a separate contract.

56. Question: Is there any limitation on the number of gates that can be out of service at any
given time?

Response: The existing gates must remain in service in the closed position to stop flow
and allow for installation of the new gats in the dry.  All of the existing gates will remain
in service.

57. Question: Can you provide photos of the existing gates?

Response: Photos of the existing gates are attached to this addendum.

Attachments:
Unit Price Sheet page 13
Prevailing Wage Rates
Pre-Bid Meeting Sign In Sheet
Plan of Providence Water Property Boundaries
Design Drawings showing the existing sluice gates
Photos of the Existing Sluice Gates
Providence Water RIPDES Permit

END OF ADDENDUM



Residuals Removal Bid
South Sedimentation Basin Section No. 00301-5

Item Quantity
Extended

Total

7. For excavation of unsuitable material below finished
grade and/or subgrade of structures and pipelines
including replacement with suitable fill material, as
specified, the sum of

1000*
Dollars ($ ) per cubic yard

8. For experimental excavation as approved by the
Engineer and as specified, the sum of

1000*
Dollars ($ ) per cubic yard

9. For installation of five (5) slide gates provided by
the Owner and as specified, the sum of

1
Dollars ($ ) lump sum

10. Allowance #1 Unknown Conditions, the sum of

Two Hundred Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents 1 $200,000.00

11. Allowance #2 Miscellaneous Landscaping
Improvements, the sum of

Two Hundred Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents 1 $200,000.00

12. Dewatering Area Site Preparation, the sum of

1
Dollars ($ ) lump sum

*Indeterminate; quantity is assumed for comparison of bids
**Bidder must insert minimum price or greater and insert extended item prices.

TOTAL AMOUNT OF BID BASED ON ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE OF QUANTITIES:
(Items 1 through 12, inclusive) - BASIS OF AWARD.

Dollars ($ )

The above unit prices shall include all labor, materials, bailing, shoring, removal, overhead, profit,
insurance, etc., to cover the finished work of the several kinds called for.

The Bidder understands that the Owner reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to waive
any informalities in the bidding.

The Bidder agrees that this bid shall be good and may not be withdrawn for a period of 60 days,
Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays excluded, after the opening of bids.



































Four Existing Sluice
Gates to Remain

Four New Sluice
Gates to be installed
in Channels



Four Existing Sluice
Gates to Remain

Four New Sluice
Gates to be installed
in ChannelsFour Existing Sluice

Gates to Remain



Existing Sluice Gates
to Remain

Install New Sluice
Gate with Electric
Actuator



Install New Sluice
Gate with Electric
Actuator, (Attach to
concrete structure)

Existing Sluice Gate
(To Remain)

Install New Sluice Gate
with Electric Actuator



























































Normal Operatlom Stoplogs In Control Structures 2 and 4. 

Isolate Lagoon 1AI Stoplogs In Control Structures 1, 3 and 41 no stoplogs In Control Structures 2 and &. 

Isolate Lagoon 1Ba Stoplogs In Control Structures 2 and s, no stoplogs In Control Structures 1, 3 and 4. 
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GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
 (a) Duty to Comply 
 
  The permittee must comply with all conditions of this permit.  Any permit noncompliance 

constitutes a violation of Chapter 46-12 of the Rhode Island General Laws and the Clean Water 
Act (CWA) and is grounds for enforcement action; for permit termination, revocation and 
reissuance, or modification; or for denial of a permit renewal application. 

 
  (1) The permittee shall comply with effluent standards or prohibitions established under 

Section 307(a) of the CWA for toxic pollutants within the time provided in the regulations 
that establish these standards or prohibitions, even if the permit has not yet been modified 
to incorporate the requirement. 

 
  (2) The CWA provides that any person who violates a permit condition implementing 

Sections 301, 302, 306, 307, 308, 318, or 405 of the CWA is subject to a civil penalty not 
to exceed $10,000 per day of such violation.  Any person who willfully or negligently 
violates permit conditions implementing Sections 301, 302, 306, 307 or 308 of the Act is 
subject to a fine of not less than $2,500 nor more than $25,000 per day of violation, or by 
imprisonment of not more than 1 year, or both. 

 
  (3) Chapter 46-12 of the Rhode Island General Laws provides that any person who violates a 

permit condition is subject to a civil penalty of not more than $5,000 per day of such 
violation.  Any person who willfully or negligently violates a permit condition is subject 
to a criminal penalty of not more than $10,000 per day of such violation and 
imprisonment for not more than 30 days, or both.  Any person who knowingly makes any 
false statement in connection with the permit is subject to a criminal penalty of not more 
than $5,000 for each instance of violation or by imprisonment for not more than 30 days, 
or both. 

 
 (b) Duty to Reapply 
 
  If the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by this permit after the expiration date 

of this permit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit.  The permittee shall submit 
a new application at least 180 days before the expiration date of the existing permit, unless 
permission for a later date has been granted by the Director.  (The Director shall not grant 
permission for applications to be submitted later than the expiration date of the existing permit.) 

 
 (c) Need to Halt or Reduce Not a Defense 
 
  It shall not be a defense for a permittee in an enforcement action that it would have been 

necessary to halt or reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the 
conditions of this permit. 

 
 (d) Duty to Mitigate 
 
  The permittee shall take all reasonable steps to minimize or prevent any discharge in violation of 

this permit which has a reasonable likelihood of adversely affecting human health or the 
environment. 
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 (e) Proper Operation and Maintenance 
 
  The permittee shall at all times properly operate and maintain all facilities and systems of 

treatment and control (and related appurtenances) which are installed or used by the permittee to 
achieve compliance with the conditions of this permit.  Proper operation and maintenance also 
includes adequate laboratory controls and appropriate quality assurance procedures, and, where 
applicable, compliance with DEM "Rules and Regulations Pertaining to the Operation and 
Maintenance  of Wastewater Treatment Facilities" and "Rules and Regulations Pertaining to the 
Disposal and Utilization of Wastewater Treatment Facility Sludge."  This provision requires the 
operation of back-up or auxiliary facilities or similar systems only when the operation is 
necessary to achieve compliance with the conditions of the permit. 

 
 (f) Permit Actions 
 
  This permit may be modified, revoked and reissued, or terminated for cause, including but not 

limited to:  (1) Violation of any terms or conditions of this permit; (2) Obtaining this permit by 
misrepresentation or failure to disclose all relevant facts; or (3) A change in any conditions that 
requires either a temporary or permanent reduction or elimination of the authorized discharge.  
The filing of a request by the permittee for a permit modification, revocation and reissuance, or 
termination or a notification of planned changes or anticipated noncompliance, does not stay any 
permit condition. 

 
 (g) Property Rights 
 
  This permit does not convey any property rights of any sort, or any exclusive privilege. 
 
 (h) Duty to Provide Information 
 
  The permittee shall furnish to the Director, within a reasonable time, any information which the 

Director may request to determine whether cause exists for modifying, revoking and reissuing, 
or terminating this permit, or to determine compliance with this permit.  The permittee shall also 
furnish to the Director, upon request, copies of records required to be kept by this permit. 

 
 (i) Inspection and Entry 
 
  The permittee shall allow the Director, or an authorized representative, upon the presentation of 

credentials and other documents as may be required by law, to: 
 
  (1) Enter upon the permittee's premises where a regulated facility or activity is located or 

conducted, or where records must be kept under the conditions of this permit; 
 
  (2) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times any records that must be kept under the 

conditions of this permit; 
 
  (3) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control 

equipment), practices or operations regulated or required under this permit; and 
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  (4) Sample or monitor any substances or parameters at any location, at reasonable times, for 

the purposes of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by the CWA or 
Rhode Island law. 

 
 (j) Monitoring and Records 
 
  (1) Samples and measurements taken for the purpose of monitoring shall be representative of 

the volume and nature of the discharge over the sampling and reporting period. 
 
  (2) The permittee shall retain records of all monitoring information, including all calibration 

and maintenance records and all original strip chart recordings from continuous 
monitoring instrumentation, copies of all reports required by this permit, and records of 
all data used to complete the application for this permit, for a period of at least 5 years 
from the date of the sample, measurement, report or application.  This period may be 
extended by request of the Director at any time. 

 
  (3) Records of monitoring information shall include: 
 
    (i) The date, exact place, and time of sampling or measurements; 
 
    (ii) The individual(s) who performed the sampling or measurements; 
 
   (iii) The date(s) analyses were performed; 
 
   (iv) The individual(s) who performed the analyses; 
 
    (v) The analytical techniques or methods used; and 
 
   (vi) The results of such analyses. 
 
  (4) Monitoring must be conducted according to test procedures approved under 40 CFR Part 

136 and applicable Rhode Island regulations, unless other test procedures have been 
specified in this permit. 

 
  (5) The CWA provides that any person who falsifies, tampers with, or knowingly renders 

inaccurate, any monitoring device or method required to be maintained under this permit 
shall upon conviction, be punished by a fine of not more than $10,000 per violation or by 
imprisonment for not more than 6 months per violation or by both.  Chapter 46-12 of the 
Rhode Island General Laws also provides that such acts are subject to a fine of not more 
than $5,000 per violation, or by imprisonment for not more than 30 days per violation, or 
by both. 

 
  (6) Monitoring results must be reported on a Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR). 
 
  (7) If the permittee monitors any pollutant more frequently than required by the permit, using 

test procedures approved under 40 CFR Part 136, applicable State regulations, or as 
specified in the permit, the results of this monitoring shall be included in the calculation 
and reporting of the data submitted in the DMR. 
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 (k) Signatory Requirement 
 
  All applications, reports, or information submitted to the Director shall be signed and certified in 

accordance with 250-RICR-150-10-1.12 of the Rhode Island Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (RIPDES) Regulations.  Rhode Island General Laws, Chapter 46-12 provides that any 
person who knowingly makes any false statement, representation, or certification in any record 
or other document submitted or required to be maintained under this permit, including 
monitoring reports or reports of compliance or noncompliance shall, upon conviction, be 
punished by a fine of not more than $5,000 per violation, or by imprisonment for not more than 
30 days per violation, or by both. 

 
 (l) Reporting Requirements 
 
  (1) Planned changes.  The permittee shall give notice to the Director as soon as possible of 

any planned physical alterations or additions to the permitted facility. 
 
  (2) Anticipated noncompliance.  The permittee shall give advance notice to the Director of 

any planned changes in the permitted facility or activity which may result in 
noncompliance with the permit requirements. 

 
  (3) Transfers.  This permit is not transferable to any person except after written notice to the 

Director.  The Director may require modification or revocation and reissuance of the 
permit to change the name of the permittee and incorporate such other requirements as 
may be necessary under State and Federal law. 

 
  (4) Monitoring reports.  Monitoring results shall be reported at the intervals specified 

elsewhere in this permit. 
 
  (5) Twenty-four hour reporting.  The permittee shall immediately report any noncompliance 

which may endanger health or the environment by calling DEM at (401) 222-4700 or 
(401) 222-3070 at night. 

 
   A written submission shall also be provided within five (5) days of the time the permittee 

becomes aware of the circumstances.  The written submission shall contain a description 
of the noncompliance and its cause; the period of noncompliance, including exact dates 
and times, and if the noncompliance has not been corrected, the anticipated time it is 
expected to continue; and steps taken or planned to reduce, eliminate, and prevent 
reoccurrence of the noncompliance. 

 
   The following information must be reported immediately: 
 
     (i) Any unanticipated bypass which causes a violation of any effluent limitation in the 

permit; or 
 

    (ii) Any upset which causes a violation of any effluent limitation in the permit; or 
 
    (iii) Any violation of a maximum daily discharge limitation for any of the pollutants 

specifically listed by the Director in the permit. 
 
   The Director may waive the written report on a case-by-case basis if the oral report has 

been received within 24 hours. 
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  (6) Other noncompliance.  The permittee shall report all instances of noncompliance not 

reported under paragraphs (1), (2), and (5), of this section, at the time monitoring reports 
are submitted.  The reports shall contain the information required in paragraph (l)(5) of 
the section. 

 
  (7) Other information.  Where the permittee becomes aware that it failed to submit any 

relevant facts in a permit application, or submitted incorrect information in a permit 
application or in any report to the Director, they shall promptly submit such facts or 
information. 

 
 (m) Bypass 
 
  "Bypass" means the intentional diversion of waste streams from any portion of a treatment 

facility. 
 
  (1) Bypass not exceeding limitations.  The permittee may allow any bypass to occur which 

does not cause effluent limitations to be exceeded, but only if it also is for essential 
maintenance to assure efficient operation.  These bypasses are not subject to the 
provisions of paragraphs (2) and (3) of this section. 

 
  (2) Notice. 
 
    (i) Anticipated bypass.  If the permittee knows in advance of the need for a bypass, it 

shall submit prior notice, if possible at least ten (10) days before the date of the 
bypass. 

 
   (ii) Unanticipated bypass.  The permittee shall submit notice of an unanticipated 

bypass as required in 250-RICR-150-10-1.14(R) of the RIPDES Regulations. 
 
  (3) Prohibition of bypass. 
 
    (i) Bypass is prohibited, and the Director may take enforcement action against a 

permittee for bypass, unless: 
 
    (A) Bypass was unavoidable to prevent loss of life, personal injury, or severe 

property damage, where "severe property damage" means substantial 
physical damage to property, damage to the treatment facilities which causes 
them to become inoperable, or substantial and permanent loss of natural 
resources which can reasonably be expected to occur in the absence of a 
bypass.  Severe property damage does not mean economic loss caused by 
delays in production; 

 
    (B) There were no feasible alternatives to the bypass, such as the use of auxiliary 

treatment facilities, retention of untreated wastes, or maintenance during 
normal periods of equipment downtime.  This condition is not satisfied if 
adequate backup equipment should have been installed in the exercise of 
reasonable engineering judgment to prevent a bypass which occurred during 
normal periods of equipment downtime or preventive maintenance; and 

 
    (C) The permittee submitted notices as required under paragraph (2) of this 

section. 



 Page 7 of 10 
 
   (ii) The Director may approve an anticipated bypass, after considering its adverse 

effects, if the Director determines that it will meet the three conditions listed above 
in paragraph (3)(i) of this section. 

 
 (n) Upset 
 
  "Upset" means an exceptional incident in which there is unintentional and temporary 

noncompliance with technology-based permit effluent limitations because of factors beyond the 
reasonable control of the permittee.  An upset does not include noncompliance to the extent 
caused by operational error, improperly designed treatment facilities, inadequate treatment 
facilities, lack of preventive maintenance, or careless or improper operation. 

 
  (1) Effect of an upset.  An upset constitutes an affirmative defense to an action brought for 

noncompliance with such technology-based permit effluent limitations if the requirements 
of paragraph (2) of this section are met.  No determination made during administrative 
review of claims that noncompliance was caused by upset, and before an action for 
noncompliance, is final administrative action subject to judicial review. 

 
  (2) Conditions necessary for a demonstration of upset.  A permittee who wishes to establish 

the affirmative defense of upset shall demonstrate, through properly signed, 
contemporaneous operating logs, or other relevant evidence that: 

 
   (a) An upset occurred and that the permittee can identify the cause(s) of the upset; 
 
   (b) The permitted facility was at the time being properly operated; 
 
   (c) The permittee submitted notice of the upset as required in 250-RICR-150-10-

1.14(R) of the RIPDES Regulations; and 
 
   (d) The permittee complied with any remedial measures required under 250-RICR-

150-10-1.14(E) of the RIPDES Regulations. 
 
  (3) Burden of proof.  In any enforcement proceeding the permittee seeking to establish the 

occurrence of an upset has the burden of proof. 
 
 (o) Change in Discharge 
 
  All discharges authorized herein shall be consistent with the terms and conditions of this permit.  

Discharges which cause a violation of water quality standards are prohibited.  The discharge of 
any pollutant identified in this permit more frequently than or at a level in excess of that 
authorized shall constitute a violation of the permit.  Any anticipated facility expansions, 
production increases, or process modifications which will result in new, different or increased 
discharges of pollutants must be reported by submission of a new NPDES application at least 
180 days prior to commencement of such discharges, or if such changes will not violate the 
effluent limitations specified in this permit, by notice, in writing, to the Director of such 
changes. Following such notice, the permit may be modified to specify and limit any pollutants 
not previously limited. 
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  Until such modification is effective, any new or increased discharge in excess of permit limits or 

not specifically authorized by the permit constitutes a violation. 
 
 (p) Removed Substances 
 
  Solids, sludges, filter backwash, or other pollutants removed in the course of treatment or control 

of wastewaters shall be disposed of in a manner consistent with applicable Federal and State 
laws and regulations including, but not limited to the CWA and the Federal Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §§6901 et seq., Rhode Island General Laws, 
Chapters 46-12, 23-19.1 and regulations promulgated thereunder. 

 
 (q) Power Failures 
 
  In order to maintain compliance with the effluent limitation and prohibitions of this permit, the 

permittee shall either: 
 
   In accordance with the Schedule of Compliance contained in Part I, provide 

an alternative power source sufficient to operate the wastewater control 
facilities; 

 
  or if such alternative power source is not in existence, and no date for its implementation appears 

in Part I, 
 
   Halt reduce or otherwise control production and/or all discharges upon the 

reduction, loss, or failure of the primary source of power to the wastewater 
control facilities. 

 
 (r) Availability of Reports 
 
  Except for data determined to be confidential under paragraph (w) below, all reports prepared in 

accordance with the terms of this permit shall be available for public inspection at the DEM, 291 
Promenade Street, Providence, Rhode Island.  As required by the CWA, effluent data shall not 
be considered confidential.  Knowingly making any false statement on any such report may 
result in the imposition of criminal penalties as provided for in Section 309 of the CWA and 
under Section 46-12-14 of the Rhode Island General Laws. 

 
 (s) State Laws 
 
  Nothing in this permit shall be construed to preclude the institution of any legal action or relieve 

the permittee from any responsibilities, liabilities, or penalties established pursuant to any 
applicable State law. 

 
 (t) Other Laws 
 
  The issuance of a permit does not authorize any injury to persons or property or invasion of 

other private rights, nor does it relieve the permittee of its obligation to comply with any other 
applicable Federal, State, and local laws and regulations. 
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 (u) Severability 
 
  The provisions of this permit are severable, and if any provision of this permit, or the application 

of any provision of this permit to any circumstance, is held invalid, the application of such 
provision to other circumstances, and the remainder of this permit, shall not be affected thereby. 

 
 (v) Reopener Clause 
 
  The Director reserves the right to make appropriate revisions to this permit in order to 

incorporate any appropriate effluent limitations, schedules of compliance, or other provisions 
which may be authorized under the CWA or State law.  In accordance with 250-RICR-150-10-
1.16 and 250-RICR-150-10-1.24 of the RIPDES Regulations, if any effluent standard or 
prohibition, or water quality standard is promulgated under the CWA or under State law which 
is more stringent than any limitation on the pollutant in the permit, or controls a pollutant not 
limited in the permit, then the Director may promptly reopen the permit and modify or revoke 
and reissue the permit to conform to the applicable standard. 

 
 (w) Confidentiality of Information 
 
  (1) Any information submitted to DEM pursuant to these regulations may be claimed as 

confidential by the submitter.  Any such claim must be asserted at the time of submission 
in the manner prescribed on the application form or instructions or, in the case of other 
submissions, by stamping the words "confidential business information" on each page 
containing such information.  If no claim is made at the time of submission, DEM may 
make the information available to the pubic without further notice. 

 
  (2) Claims of confidentiality for the following information will be denied: 
 
     (i) The name and address of any permit applicant or permittee; 
 
     (ii) Permit applications, permits and any attachments thereto; and 
 
    (iii) NPDES effluent data. 
 
 (x) Best Management Practices 
 
  The permittee shall adopt Best Management Practices (BMP) to control or abate the discharge of 

toxic pollutants and hazardous substances associated with or ancillary to the industrial 
manufacturing or treatment process and the Director may request the submission of a BMP plan 
where the Director determines that a permittee's practices may contribute significant amounts of 
such pollutants to waters of the State. 

 
 (y) Right of Appeal 
 
  Within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice of a final permit decision, the permittee or any 

interested person may submit a request to the Director for an adjudicatory hearing to reconsider 
or contest that decision.  The request for a hearing must conform to the requirements of 250-
RICR-150-10-1.50 of the RIPDES Regulations. 



 Page 10 of 10 
 
DEFINITIONS 
 1. For purposes of this permit, those definitions contained in the RIPDES Regulations and the 

Rhode Island Pretreatment Regulations shall apply. 
 
 2. The following abbreviations, when used, are defined below. 
 
  cu. M/day or M3/day cubic meters per day 

  mg/l milligrams per liter 

  ug/l micrograms per liter 

  lbs/day pounds per day 

  kg/day kilograms per day 

  Temp. oC temperature in degrees Centigrade 

  Temp. oF temperature in degrees Fahrenheit 

  Turb. turbidity measured by the Nephelometric 
     Method (NTU) 

  TNFR or TSS total nonfilterable residue or total 
     suspended solids 

  DO dissolved oxygen 

  BOD five-day biochemical oxygen demand unless 
     otherwise specified 

  TKN total Kjeldahl nitrogen as nitrogen 

  Total N total nitrogen 

  NH3-N ammonia nitrogen as nitrogen 

  Total P total phosphorus 

  COD chemical oxygen demand 

  TOC total organic carbon 

  Surfactant surface-active agent 

  pH a measure of the hydrogen ion concentration 

  PCB  polychlorinated biphenyl 

  CFS cubic feet per second 

  MGD million gallons per day 

  Oil & Grease Freon extractable material 

  Total Coliform total coliform bacteria 

  Fecal Coliform total fecal coliform bacteria 

  ml/l milliliter(s) per liter 

  NO3-N nitrate nitrogen as nitrogen 

  NO2-N nitrite nitrogen as nitrogen 

  NO3-NO2 combined nitrate and nitrite nitrogen as nitrogen 

  C12 total residual chlorine 
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